
 

 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and 
 

Commissioning 
 

Samantha Lawton 
 
Governance and Commissioning 
 

PO Box 1720 
 

 

Huddersfield 
 

HD1 9EL 
 

Tel: 01484 221000  
 

Please ask for: Stacey Hofmann 
 

Email: Tel: 01484 221000 
 

Monday 8 December 2025 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Dear Member 
 

Appeals Panel 
 

The Appeals Panel will meet in the Meeting Room 2 - Town Hall, 
Huddersfield at 9.30 am on Tuesday 16 December 2025. 
 
The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details. 
 
 

 
 

Samantha Lawton 
 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and Commissioning 
 
 
Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

The Appeals Panel members are:- 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Member 
Councillor David Longstaff (Chair) 
Councillor Gwen Lowe 
Councillor Alex Vickers 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached 

 

 
  Pages 

 

1:   Membership of the Panel 
 
To receive apologies for absence from those Members who are 
unable to attend the meeting. 
 

 
 

 

2:   Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
To approve the Minutes of the meetings of the Panel held on the 25th 
November 2025 and 3rd December 2025. 
 

 
 

1 - 4 

3:   Declaration of Interests 
 
Members will be asked to say if there are any items on the Agenda 
in which they have any disclosable pecuniary interests or any other 
interests, which may prevent them from participating in any 
discussion of the items or participating in any vote upon the items. 
 

 
 

5 - 6 

4:   Exclusion of the Public 
 
To resolve that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following items of business on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 

 
 

 

5:   School Transport Appeal (Pre-16) -  TW 
 
This report is recommended for consideration in private because the 
information contained in it is exempt information within Paragraph 1 
of part 1 to schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as 
amended by the Local Government (access to Information) variation 
order 2006. It is considered the report contains information relating 
to any individual. 
 
 

7 - 66 



 

 

The public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosure of the information in terms of 
accountability, transparency and openness in council decision 
making. 
 
To consider the appeal at 9:30am 
 

 
 

6:   School Transport Appeal (Pre-16) - DD 
 
This report is recommended for consideration in private because the 
information contained in it is exempt information within Paragraph 1 
of part 1 to schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as 
amended by the Local Government (access to Information) variation 
order 2006. It is considered the report contains information relating 
to any individual. 
 
The public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosure of the information in terms of 
accountability, transparency and openness in council decision 
making. 
 
To consider the appeal at 10:15am 
 

 
 

67 - 78 

7:   School Transport Appeal (Pre-16) - JJ 
 
This report is recommended for consideration in private because the 
information contained in it is exempt information within Paragraph 1 
of part 1 to schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as 
amended by the Local Government (access to Information) variation 
order 2006. It is considered the report contains information relating 
to any individual. 
 
The public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosure of the information in terms of 
accountability, transparency and openness in council decision 
making. 
 
To consider the appeal at 11:15am 
 

 
 

79 - 138 

8:   Travel Assistance Appeal (Post-16) - FN 
 
This report is recommended for consideration in private because the 
information contained in it is exempt information within Paragraph 1 
of part 1 to schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as 
amended by the Local Government (access to Information) variation 
order 2006. 

139 - 
194 



 

 

It is considered the report contains information relating to any 
individual. 
 
The public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosure of the information in terms of 
accountability, transparency and openness in council decision 
making. 
 
To consider the appeal at 12:00pm 
 

 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Contact Officer: Claire Gardiner  
 

KIRKLEES COUNCIL 
 

APPEALS PANEL 
 

Tuesday 25th November 2025 
 
Present: Councillor David Longstaff (Chair) 
 Councillor Gwen Lowe 

Councillor Alex Vickers 
  
In attendance: Sarah Brown, Head of Service 

Rebecca Reid, Senior Manager 
 

 
1 Membership of the Panel 

All Panel members were in attendance. 
 

2 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
RESOLVED:  
That the minutes of the meeting held on the 11th November 2025 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

3 Declaration of Interests 
No interests were declared. 
 

4 Exclusion of the Public 
That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of agenda  
items , 5, and 6, (Minute No 5 and 6 refer) because the items contained  
exempt information by virtue of paragraph 1 (information relating to any  
individual) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  
 

5 School Transport (Pre 16) - KL 
The Panel considered information in respect of a School Transport Pre-16 Appeal. 
Having carefully considered the information presented the Panel determined that the 
appeal be adjourned. 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the appeal in respect of KL be adjourned. 
 

6 School Transport Appeal (Pre-16) A & A O 
The Panel considered information in respect of a School Transport Pre-16 Appeal. 
Having carefully considered the information presented the Panel determined that the 
case did not present exceptional circumstances and refused the appeal. 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the appeals in respect of AO & AO be refused. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

Contact Officer: Claire Gardiner  
 

KIRKLEES COUNCIL 
 

APPEALS PANEL 
 

Wednesday 3rd December 2025 
 
Present: Councillor David Longstaff (Chair) 
 Councillor Caroline Holt 

Councillor Matthew McLoughlin 
  
In attendance:  Heather Thompson, Appeals Officer 
  Sharon Ainley, Passenger Travel Manager 
 Russell Williams, Operational Manager, Public Protection 
 

 
1 Membership of the Panel 

No apologies were received. 
 

2 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
RESOLVED –  
That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 18th and 19th November 2025 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

3 Declaration of Interests 
No interests were declared. 
 

4 Exclusion of the Public 
RESOLVED –  
That the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of agenda 
items 5, 6 and 7 (Minute No.s 5, 6 and 7 refer) because the items contained exempt 
information by virtue of paragraph 1 (information relating to any individual) of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

5 Travel Assistance Appeal (Post-16) - AH 
The Panel considered information in respect of a Stage 2 Post-16 Transport 
Assistance Appeal. Having carefully considered the information presented the Panel 
determined that the appeal be refused. 
 
RESOLVED –  
That the appeal in respect of AH be refused. 
 

6 School Transport Appeal (Pre-16) - CS 
The Panel considered information in respect of a School Transport Pre-16 Appeal. 
Having carefully considered the information presented the Panel determined that the 
appeal be refused. 
 
RESOLVED –  
That the appeal in respect of CS be refused. 

Page 3



Appeals Panel -  3 December 2025 
 

2 
 

 
7 School Transport Appeal (Pre-16) - DM 

The Panel considered information in respect of a School Transport Pre-16 Appeal. 
Having carefully considered the information presented the Panel determined that the 
appeal be upheld. 
 
RESOLVED –  
That the appeal in respect of DM be upheld. 
 
 

Page 4



K
IR

K
LE

ES
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

/C
A

B
IN

ET
/C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

ET
C

 
D

EC
LA

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

ES
TS

 
 

N
am

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
 

Ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

 
in

te
re

st
 

 

Ty
pe

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t (

eg
 a

 
di

sc
lo

sa
bl

e 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

 o
r a

n 
“O

th
er

 
In

te
re

st
”)

 

 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

in
te

re
st

 re
qu

ire
 y

ou
 to

 
w

ith
dr

aw
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 
ha

ve
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 is

 u
nd

er
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n?
  [

Y/
N

] 

 

B
rie

f d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

in
te

re
st

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 Si
gn

ed
:  

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

   
   

   
D

at
ed

:  
  …

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
.. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



N
O

TE
S 

D
is

cl
os

ab
le

 P
ec

un
ia

ry
 In

te
re

st
s 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

s,
 th

ey
 a

re
 y

ou
r d

is
cl

os
ab

le
 p

ec
un

ia
ry

 in
te

re
st

s 
un

de
r t

he
 n

ew
 n

at
io

na
l r

ul
es

. A
ny

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
sp

ou
se

 o
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 y
ou

 a
re

 li
vi

ng
 a

s 
hu

sb
an

d 
or

 w
ife

, o
r a

s 
if 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
yo

ur
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
.  

 A
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
of

fic
e,

 tr
ad

e,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n 
or

 v
oc

at
io

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
on

 fo
r p

ro
fit

 o
r g

ai
n,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

s.
  

A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l b
en

ef
it 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 fr

om
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y)
 m

ad
e 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

er
io

d 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f a

ny
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

yo
u 

in
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t d

ut
ie

s 
as

 a
 m

em
be

r, 
or

 to
w

ar
ds

 y
ou

r e
le

ct
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

 A
ny

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
ad

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
yo

u,
 o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 (o

r a
 b

od
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
as

 
a 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t) 
an

d 
yo

ur
 c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
-  

• 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
r w

or
ks

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
; a

nd
  

• 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fu

lly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t i

n 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
av

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
  

 A
ny

 li
ce

nc
e 

(a
lo

ne
 o

r j
oi

nt
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s)

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

ol
ds

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
la

nd
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r a
 m

on
th

 o
r l

on
ge

r. 
 

 A
ny

 te
na

nc
y 

w
he

re
 (t

o 
yo

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 - 

th
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

 is
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y;
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 is
 a

 b
od

y 
in

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r 

ci
vi

l p
ar

tn
er

, h
as

 a
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t. 
 

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

 h
as

 in
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 o
f a

 b
od

y 
w

he
re

 - 
 

(a
) t

ha
t b

od
y 

(to
 y

ou
r k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 h

as
 a

 p
la

ce
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
or

 la
nd

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f y
ou

r c
ou

nc
il 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y;

 a
nd

  
(b

) e
ith

er
 - 

 
 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 e

xc
ee

ds
 £

25
,0

00
 o

r o
ne

 h
un

dr
ed

th
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l i
ss

ue
d 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t 

bo
dy

; o
r  

 
if 

th
e 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t b

od
y 

is
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

, t
he

 to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ha

re
s 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

 in
 

w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

as
 a

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t e

xc
ee

ds
 o

ne
 h

un
dr

ed
th

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l i

ss
ue

d 
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l o

f t
ha

t c
la

ss
.  

 

Page 6



Document is Restricted

Page 7

Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 139

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 149

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 153

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 155

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 163

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 165

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 171

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12Aof the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	12. Transport Appeal Panel Minutes 03.12.2025

	3 Declaration of Interests
	5 School Transport Appeal (Pre-16) -  TW
	Assessment of walked routes

	6 School Transport Appeal (Pre-16) - DD
	7 School Transport Appeal (Pre-16) - JJ
	Assessment of walked routes

	8 Travel Assistance Appeal (Post-16) - FN
	Appendix 1 - FN Application Form
	Appendix 2 - Initial Decision Letter
	Appendix 3 - 1st Stage Appeal
	Appendix 4 - 1st Stage appeal decision letter
	Appendix 5 - 2nd Stage Appeal
	Appendix 6 - FN Annotated EHCP


